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‘Glimpses of the Past’ 
We hope you will enjoy browsing through the images below which give a fascinating insight 

into times past and how life was.  You are most welcome to send us images that you may 

have of the church or local area.   

If this is of interest, please do contact us. The website homepage ‘get in touch’ tab opens 

up a ‘send us a message’ form.  

 

  Index         Pages 

The Churchwardens’ Diary (1738 – 1783)   2 - 5 

Books, Letters, Notices, Paintings, Postcards and  6 - 15 
Proclamations 

The Farming Community      16 

The Hampton Lovett Heritage Railway   17 - 19 

From The Newspapers…      20 - 21 
 

 

 

  



2 
 

The Churchwardens’ Diary (circa 1738-1783) 

 

Found amongst other papers, this is historic diary contains the 

record of churchwardens at Hampton Lovett Church, together with 

records of expenditure.  

The diary itself will now be professionally conserved.  

 

 

 

 

Here can be seen the names of churchwardens for the period 1742 - 1761 – as clear as the 

day they were written. 
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Just over halfway down this page can be found an entry – ―Paid for ringing at gunpowder 
treason‘.  

Gunpowder Treason Day 

was set as a day of 

thanksgiving for the failure 

of the plot by Guy Fawkes 

and his co-conspirators to 

kill King James I by blowing 

up the House of Lords 

during the state opening of 

Parliament on 5th 

November 1605. 

‘The Observance of 5th 

November Act 1605’ 

required every church to 

hold a service and ring the 

bells to commemorate the 

deliverance of the nation 

from this attempted attack. 

Everybody was required to 

attend a service. This entry 

by Churchwarden Wilks 

records the bellringers 

being paid one shilling and 

six pence. 

 

The Act remained on the statute book until 1859. 
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In 1749 the Churchwarden appears to be recording expenditure for the service of ‘ale at a 

Parish Meeting’.  Excellent idea! 
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Churchwarden John Tristram wrote with a flourish in 1751 and with good quality ink that 

has stood the test of time.   
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Books, Letters, Notices, Paintings, Postcards and Proclamations 

During a recent audit of historic documents we found a mix of materials. These works 

show how the church and life in general has changed over the years. In one case, they show 

how major events affected people in the local community. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

The snowy winter scene to the left 

is comparatively recent. How 

different is the earlier image 

(below) dated 1821. This shows the 

original east churchyard wall, now 

long gone.  

The painting also reveals that the 

first level of the C14th tower was 

glazed at this time.  This provided 

evidence to support reglazing 

during the extensive works 

undertaken in 2023 to repair, 

conserve and reopen the tower for 

guided visitor access. 

 

 

If you have any images of the 
church from earlier times 

please do get in touch. We 
would love to add them to 
this section of the catalogue. 

Photograph by John James / Alamy 

Source: Hubert Thomas Parker Scrapbook, The New York Public 
Library digital Collection. 

Drawn when Revd. Thomas was visiting England. The artist M.A.T is 
not known but may have been the Reverend’s sister. 
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The Whole Duty of Man was written when England was governed by Oliver Cromwell’s 

Commonwealth. Despite its title it is a book aimed at the whole family. The work was a 

bestseller for 100 years and remained influential for a further century.  The forward is by 

Dr Henry Hammond (previously Royal Chaplain to Charles I). 

 

It is a book we feel very close to in 

Hampton Lovett.  Henry Hammond had 

come to stay with Lady Dorothy 

Pakington in nearby Westwood House.  

He would remain there for the last 10 

years of his life.  A small secret writing 

group worked earnestly, hoping to 

prepare the way for the restoration of 

the Anglican Church. Published 

anonymously in 1658 the actual 

authorship remains something of an 

unsolved mystery.  

 

 

 

You can read the full story in our ‘If These Walls 

Could Talk…’ booklet which can be download from 

the website.  

 

A monument to Henry Hammond can be found in 

the church. 
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The photograph below reminds us of how historic events impacted on the community. 

Frozen in time is the funeral in 1913 of ‘Indian Mutiny’ military veteran Thomas Ashcroft 

aged 84. The mutiny in 1857 was against the East India Company which functioned as a 

sovereign power on behalf of the British Crown. Thomas Ashcroft would have been 28 

when serving in India. When he died, he was a resident of the Union Workhouse in 

Droitwich. Strangely (given the subject matter) the photograph was turned into a postcard. 

We have an example of one sent as such in 1914. Five other burials of workhouse residents 

are recorded in our burial register between 1911 and 1917.  Many of the young military 

men pictured here must have gone on to lose their lives in the First World War. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Another postcard 
probably early 
1900s. Some of the 
trees have gone, 
modes of transport 
have certainly 
changed and the 
light by the lychgate 
is an interesting 
feature. 
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This proclamation (dated 1830) by King William IV was to be read out at least four times a 
year in all churches after a service.  It was still retained on site amongst other documents 
but we no longer read it out! 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



10 
 

This letter from 1915 is another reminder of how tough life could be. In 1836 an elected 

Board of Guardians formed the Droitwich Poor Union and in due course the Droitwich 

Union Workhouse was opened.  The ‘Overseer of the Poor’ was appointed annually in 

each parish to perform the assessment and collection of poor-rates and was responsible for 

administering to the needs of the poor. There is a scribbled note on the back of this letter 

to record the appointment of another person as overseer on February 16th. 
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Sometimes you can tell something of the character of a person from even a short note. 

From 1922, this notice suggests Mr Wilson was a stickler for people being on time.  

Hopefully nobody turned up late. 
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The Saga of the Droitwich to Kidderminster Omnibus Service: 

In 1920/21 the parish was engaged in a lobbying campaign for a motor omnibus service to 
be run between Droitwich and Kidderminster. Midland Red (as we came to know them) 
were expanding rapidly but here (April 1920) the problem seems to be the difficulty of 
supplying vehicles. For bus fans – the image below shows the new front entrance design 
patented by the company in 1918.  Note also the ‘National Scheme For Disabled Men’ 
badge.  More on this on page 16. 
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It seems by September 1920 the problem remains. However, by July 21 the bus company 
writes to the parish to say that despite ‘going to the trouble of fixing things up’, the Road 
Committee of the County Council had discontinued the service. Some councils had set up 
their own bus undertakings at this time whereas others were happy for bus services to be 
in private hands. 
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There followed a helpful reply. The item will be raised at a County Council  
meeting and the writer is supportive of there at least being a service on market 
days. We don’t know when the bus service finally did become established! 

On a poignant 
note, the Parish 
Meeting secretary, 
presumably at a 
meeting when this 
letter was 
discussed, has 
noted on the back 
that the Rector 
proposed a hearty 
vote of thanks to 
Mr Wilson for all is 
work as Chairman, 
stating that Mr 
Wilson felt 
compelled to 
resign his position 
owing to his failing 
eyesight.  

Mr Wilson 
“tendered his best 
thanks to the 
Rector and those 
present for their 
kind words”. 
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The National Scheme For Disabled Men 

The letter heading of The Birmingham & Midland Motor Omnibus Co; Limited carries the 

stamp of The National Scheme For Disabled Men. Also referred to as ‘The King’s National 

Roll Scheme’ this was a scheme launched by royal proclamation as an employment 

programme for ex-servicemen disabled because of the First World War.  

The use of the design was limited to those employers who were signatories to the scheme. 

It was sometimes referred to as The Seal of Honour – honouring the debt that was now 

owed to the servicemen who sacrificed so much. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Image: IWM (Art. IWM PST 13819) 

“But, as they stood there chaffering, 

Out from the station came 

A string of cautious motor-cars, 

Packed full of lean, brown men, 

The halt, the maimed, the blind, the lame, 

The wreckage of the wars, 

Their faces pinched and full of pain, 

Their eyes still dazed with stress and strain, 

The nation's creditors”. 

From: ‘Flora’s Bit’ by William Arthur Dunkerley 

(also known as John Oxenham) 
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The Farming Community 

Farming community is at the heart of Hampton Lovett: thank you to the Laight family for 
permission to include three photographs showing ‘life on the farm’ in times past. We would 
love to receive more photographs to include here. 
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The Hampton Lovett Heritage Railway 

Thanks to the sterling efforts of 

two volunteers, both enthusiastic 

railway modelers, we can now bring 

you images of The Hampton Lovett 

Heritage Railway.  This 00-gauge 

working model brings to live various 

aspects of our local heritage. These 

includes a recreation of the old 

Cutnall Green Halt (now long 

closed) and recalls the nearby 

Operation Starfish decoy site 

designed to draw bombers away from city targets during World War II.  We anticipate that 

this historic model will make a reappearance at a future Heritage Open Day. 
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From The Newspapers… 
From Berrow’s Worcester Journal reporting on the dedication of the memorial brass tablet to those who 
gave their lives in the First World War. It is positioned below the nave west window, dedicated to Richard 
Hampton Lewis and his brother Tom– sons of Rector Edwin Lewis and his wife Frederica. 

 

The nave-west window 
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The memorial to Sir John 
Pakington (4th Baronet) 1671 – 
1727 can be found in the 
chapel. Landowner and  
ardent politician, he served in 
parliament for over 30 years 
and lived through the rein of 
five monarchs. 
 
Sir Roger de Coverley is a 
fictional character created by 
Joseph Addison (1672-1719) 
writer, essayist and co-founder 
of the original Spectator 
periodical. The Spectator 
adopted a fictional method of 
presentation through a 
‘Spectator Club’  whose 
imaginary members extolled 
the authors’ own ideas about 
society. These club members 
included characters 
representing commerce, the 
army, the town and the country 
gentry.  
 
It was rumoured that Sir John, 
with his landed estate in 
Worcestershire, was the 
model for the country 
gentleman. This article (date 
and newspaper unknown) 
seems a slightly tongue-in 
cheek but ultimately a kind 
tribute to the man. 
 
 

 


